
 
Planning Board 

Meeting Agenda 
 

April 15, 2014 at 7:00pm 
Council Chambers, 201 S Main St 

Invocation 

1. Approve minutes of the March 18, 2014 meeting 

2. Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401). Request by Chase Brooks for a Special Use Permit 
for Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming for property located at 107 E Shannon Dr 
(GPIN 8883421261). 

3. Watercourse Apartments (CR1403). Request by Lee-Moore Capital Company to rezone the property 
located at 1050 Woody Dr (GPIN 8884724405) from General Business (B-2) to Conditional Residential 
(C-R) to construct seven apartment buildings with a total of 196 residential units. 

A complete agenda packet is available at www.cityofgraham.com 



                         501  
PLANNING ZONING BOARD 

Tuesday, March 18, 2014 
 

The Planning & Zoning Board held its regular meeting on Tuesday, March 18, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers of the Graham Municipal Building. Board members present were Ricky Hall, Bill Teer, Andy 
Rumley, Tim Beshel, Michael Benesch and Dean Ward. Bonnie Blalock was absent. Staff members present 
were Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner, Frankie Maness, City Manager, and Martha Johnson, Zoning/Inspections 
Technician. 
 
Chairman Andy Rumley called the meeting to order and explained the function of the Board. 
 
Invocation was given by Ricky Hall.   
 
1. Approve minutes of the January 21, 2014 meeting.  Ricky Hall made a motion to approve, second by Tim 
Beshel. All voted in favor.  
 
2. WKZ River Bend Apartments (CR1401). Request by WKZ Housing, LLC to rezone property located at 1108 
S Main St (GPIN 8883277291) from General Business (B-2) to Conditional Business (C-B) to construct a 72-
unit multifamily apartment community. Charlie Heritage spoke representing WKZ Housing LLC. Mr. Heritage 
stated they are constructing a family project with 2, 3, & 4 bedroom units, playground, gazebo and a community 
center with a media center along with kitchen and laundry facilities. The exterior will be brick along with vinyl 
siding & vinyl shaks. There will be 6 three story buildings plus the community center with rent ranging between 
$363 up to $939 including utilities. Mr. Heritage said there would be one entrance in and out onto S Main St.  
 
Dean Ward asked what type of lighting they would have on the site. Mr. Heritage said it would be down lighting 
with standard poles with security system and cameras that record. Bill Teer asked if approved when would they 
get started and Mr. Heritage said possibly 4th quarter of this year and 10-12 months to be constructed. 
 
Lee Holt represented the family that owns this property being considered for rezoning. Ms. Holt said they had 
conversation with this company and what they were planning to construct. The family felt that this project 
would be a good opportunity for the community to bring in some local jobs and support the surrounding 
businesses. They will be looking to develop this property into something even if this doesn’t pass but they will 
be aggressively trying to sell the property.  
 
The following people spoke in opposition to the project due to landscaping, fencing, added foot traffic in the 
community, water runoff and drainage, traffic impact with one entrance in and out along with the increased 
impact on the already crowded schools: 
 
Jerry King   1007 Ross Street 
Ed Kirchgessner  110 Old Farm Drive 
Pam Fogleman  1005 Ross Street 
Alan Tickles   204 Cornelia Drive 
 
Dean Ward asked if a traffic study had been done and Melissa Guilbeau said that DOT didn’t request one. 
Michael Benesch was concerned with traffic congestion and he felt this would be a major issue morning and in 
the evenings in that area. 
 
 
 



502                                                                                                                      
 
 
Jackie Cole, a member of the Alamance Burlington Board of Education spoke stating that this project would 
create issues for the school which is at and over capacity. Ms. Cole said the Board would be glad to provide any 
information about the capacity because they had compiled a study last fall. Ms. Cole said this project would 
affect the elementary school along with the middle school.  
 
Ricky Hall made a motion to approve this with staff’s recommended condition and to put fencing up, second by 
Andy Rumley. The Board recommended approval with a 5 to 1 vote with Bill Teer voting against.  

3. Graham Commons Phase I (CR1402). Request by Graham Commons Associates Limited Partnership to 
rezone a portion of the property located on Auto Park Dr at Hanford Rd and W Crescent Square Dr 
(GPIN 8883091817) from Residential (low density) (R-18) to Conditional Residential (C-R) to construct a 64-
unit multifamily rental community. 
 
Mr. Bill Owen of 1416 Pine Valley Loop Fayetteville, NC spoke representing the requestor. Mr. Owen 
explained the project would be a garden style development with one 16 unit building and the other buildings 
would have 8 units with the 2 bedroom being approximately 1000 square feet and the 3 bedroom being 
approximately 1200 square feet. Mr. Owen stated the grounds would be irrigated with shrubbery and 
landscaping that is required by the City of Graham. Mr. Owen also stated that they manage their own units, own 
all of their units and it has been a family owned business for over 35 years. Mr. Owen showed the revised site 
plan to the Board and also stated that the 4 acres on the other side of the creek would not be developed. 
Mr. Owen continued his presentation with numerous pictures of some of their facilities. 
 
Bill Teer asked when they would start the project if approved and Mr. Owen said they would start in the spring 
of 2015 and completion hopefully would be by the end of that year. 
 
Dean Ward inquired about the type of lighting. Mr. Marvin Mercer owner of the engineering company doing the 
project of 33 Donald Lane Alexander, NC stated there would be down lighting and would follow the ordinance 
required by the City of Graham. 
 
Dean Ward inquired the range on the rent. Mr. Owen said the range would be $460 to $775. 
 
The following people spoke in opposition to the project due to being detrimental to property values, added 
traffic congestion, school overloading, and concern with some of the clientele attracted by low income housing: 
 
Chad Oakley   114 West Gilbreath Street 
Thomas Foust   906 Hanford Road 
Dave Dillard   919 Hanford Road 
Lynne Dillard   919 Hanford Road 
Jack Brewer   922 Hanford Road 
Daniel Biggs   241 Olde Quarry Road 
John Wooten   387 Carolina Circle  
Sharon Kudron  913 Hanford Road 
 
Chad Oakley also provided a copy of a signed protest petition to each of the Board members. Mr. Oakley stated 
he had also spoken with area business owners who also opposed this project.  
 
 
 



               503 
 

Dean Ward asked if anyone had approached any of the neighbors to explain to them what they might be 
proposing to do and Mr. Smith said no but they would be happy to discuss anything with them. 
 
Dean Ward stated he wasn’t sure this project was the fit for this property although it was a well thought out 
project and Tim Beshel agreed with Mr. Ward. Mr. Teer said he didn’t think it was the right fit for that piece of 
property. Ricky Hall disagreed with the other members. Mr. Hall felt like this project was a fit and meets the 
2020 plan. He said the economy has changed and young people aren’t looking to buy houses until the economy 
has improved. Mr. Benesch stated the site plan looks good and it does fit by the City of Graham’s guidelines but 
he is against this project. Andy Rumley said the presentation was excellent, a good use for the property yes but 
not the best use for the property and he too was against this project. 
 
Dean Ward made a motion to deny approval of this project, second by Michael Benesch. The motion was 
approved by a vote of 5 to 1, with Ricky Hall dissenting. 
 
No further business the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
Martha Johnson 
Inspections/Zoning Technician 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center 
(SUP1401) 

Type of Request: Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 
City Council on May 6, 2014 

Contact Information 
Chase Brooks 
1611 Parham Dr, Graham, NC  27253 
336-740-0709; chaselivelife@gmail.com 
 

Summary 
This is a request for a Special Use Permit for electronic, internet 
or sweepstakes gaming at 107 E Shannon Dr. There is an existing 
building on the property that contains a garden center. The 
internet marketing center is proposed to share the building with 
the garden center. 

 

Because this is a new use for the property, the development will 
be required to comply with off-street parking requirements. As of 
the writing of this staff report, a plot plan showing how off-street  
parking requirements will be met had not been submitted. 

Location 
107 E Shannon Dr 

GPIN: 8883421261 

Proposed Special Use 
Electronic, Internet or 
Sweepstakes Gaming 

Current Zoning 
General Business (B-2) 

Overlay District 
None 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-18, B-2 & I-1 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses, General 

Businesses and Industrial 

Size 
1.56 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
Water along S Main St 

No Sewer 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Denial 



Staff Report, Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401) Page 2 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

Because this is a change of use that results in an increase of two in the Land Use Classification number, 
the development will be required to comply with landscaping requirements and those shall apply to the 
entire lot. As of the writing of this staff report, a plot plan showing how landscaping requirements will 
be met had not been submitted. 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.3.2. Encourage commercial development within designated 
village centers as opposed to continued commercial strip 
development. The special use permit would permit a type of 
commercial development in a designated village center. 

· 6.3.4. Promote the location of mixed-use development at 
designated village centers. The special use permit would 
allow a development with two commercial uses in a 
designated village center. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

· 7.5.4.1.2. Encourage commercial development in the district 
in village and neighborhood centers to serve the residents of 
South Graham. This pattern should be promoted over the 
highway commercial/strip development that has occurred 
along S Main St. The special use permit would permit a type 
of commercial development in a designated village center. 

DRAFT Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
In granting a special use permit, the City Council shall find that all 
of the six conditions listed below have been met, or it shall be 
denied. Staff has prepared the following DRAFT findings of fact 
for each of the six conditions. These findings should be modified 
by the Council as it considers its decision. 

1. All applicable regulations of the zoning district in which the 
use is proposed are complied with. 
The property is zoned B-2. “Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming” is permitted in this zoning 
district with a Special Use Permit. The proposed internet marketing center will be located in the 
existing building, which appears to meet the area, height and yard regulations. Any new signs will 
require a sign permit. 

2. Conditions specific to each use, identified by the Development Ordinance, are complied with. 
As of the writing of this staff report, a plot plan demonstrating that off-street parking and 
landscaping could be complied with had not yet been submitted. There are also a number of 
requirements specific to this Special Use Permit: 
o This use cannot be located closer than 1000 feet to another Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes 

Gaming establishment; closer than 1000 feet to a public or private elementary or secondary 
school, child day care center or nursery school, public park, church or community college; or closer 

Planning District 
South 

Development Type 
Village Center, Traditional 

Neighborhood Development and  
Neighborhood Residential 

For single family residential, 
townhouses, apartments & 

condominiums, commercial, 
office/institutional and mixed use 

Characteristics include open 
space; parks included with 
development; pedestrian-

oriented; automobile-oriented; 
design requirements; sidewalks; 

street trees; landscaping; 
buffering/screening; parking 
provided on-site; height of 

structures regulated; controlled 
access; building orientation 

Density of 3+ DU/acre or  
10,001 to 100,000sf of retail 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 



Staff Report, Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401) Page 3 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

than 500 feet to a bar or night club, as measured from property line to property line. The proposed 
internet marketing center is located roughly 915 feet from Bethany Presbyterian Church which is 
located at 1501 S Main St. 

o No other principal or accessory use may occupy the same building or property with any Electronic, 
Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming establishment. The proposed internet marketing center will 
occupy the same building and property as an existing garden center. 

o Flashing lights or fluttering devices designed and used to attract attention are not permitted. The 
application does not mention or address this. 

o Sound amplification shall not be directed outside. The application does not mention or address 
this. 

o Alcohol may not be consumed on sold on the premises. The application states that no alcohol will 
be permitted. 

o No person under age 18 may be allowed in the establishment and age must be verified for each 
customer at the time of entry into the establishment. The application does not mention or address 
this. 

o Staff has reviewed the application and has no reason to believe that it contains any misstatements 
of fact. 

o Staff had a criminal background check done by the Graham Police Department and has verified 
that the applicant has not been convicted of a felony within the past three years. 

o The proposed site must meet building and fire prevention codes. A stop work order for interior 
renovations to the existing building was issued on March 11, 2014 due to misrepresentation in the 
building permit application of the type of use that would occupy the space. Building permit #5138 
was issued for interior renovations consisting of partition walls for a portion of the building at 
107 E Shannon Dr to be used for office space; this permit was revoked on 3/11/2014. 

3. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed and 
developed according to the plan as submitted. 
The proposed internet marketing center will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

4. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property or that the use is a public 
necessity. 
The proposed internet marketing center will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property. 

5. The location and character of the use if developed according to the plan as submitted will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with the plan of 
development for the Graham planning area. 
The proposed internet marketing center is a commercial use that will be located adjacent to other 
existing commercial uses and is in general conformity with the Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

6. Satisfactory provision has been made for the following, when applicable: vehicle circulation, parking 
and loading, service entrances and areas, screening, utilities, signs and lighting, and open space. 
As of the writing of this staff report, a plot plan showing vehicle circulation and parking had not been 
submitted. 



Staff Report, Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401) Page 4 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends denial of the Special Use Permit. The following supports this recommendation: 

· The development does not comply with the requirements of the Development Ordinance. It is 
located within 1000 feet of a church and will occupy the same building and property as an existing 
garden center. 

· The development does not meet all six conditions required by Section 10.144 of the Development 
Ordinance, specifically condition #2. 













PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

o  [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 15th day of April, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center  
(SUP1401) 

Type of Request 
Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

City Council on May 6, 2014 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

Watercourse Apartments (CR1403) 

Type of Request: Conditional Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 
City Council on May 6, 2014 

Contact Information 
Lee-Moore Capital Company 
Drawer 9, Sanford, NC  27330 
919-775-2301; kbradley@lmoc.net 

Summary 
This is a request to rezone the subject property from B-2 to C-R to 
construct seven apartment buildings with a total of 
196 residential units. The parcel is currently occupied by a single 
vacant structure. Town Branch Creek and its floodplain cross the 
property. A Special Use Permit for a Unified Business 
Development was approved for this property on 11/4/2008. 

 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to C-R in 
accordance with the “Conditional Use Zoning Exhibit & Site Plan” 
and “Utility & Transportation Exhibit,” both prepared by CE Group 
and dated March 25, 2014. Conceptual perspective views, prepared by Finley Design and dated 
March 17, 2014, were also submitted with the application package, as well as a site narrative.  

Location 
1050 Woody Dr 

GPIN: 8884724405 

Current Zoning 
General Business (B-2) 

Proposed Zoning 
Conditional Residential (C-R) 

Overlay District 
E Harden St/Hwy 54 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-18 & B-2 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses, General 
Businesses and Undeveloped 

Size 
15.038 acres 

Density 
13.0 DU/acre 

Public Water & Sewer 
Water along Harden and Woody 
Sewer across property and along 

Woody 

Floodplain 
Yes, across portion of property 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval 



Staff Report, Watercourse Apartments (CR1403) Page 2 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

The proposal is for a 196-unit multifamily development consisting of seven residential buildings, 
maintenance building and swimming pool complex. Buildings 1 through 5 are proposed to be three-
stories tall and buildings 6 and 7 four-stories. The applicant also proposes to construct a park area, 
8’ asphalt trail and pedestrian bridge. Other specifics of the proposal include: 

· 80 one-bedroom units, 72 two-bedroom and 44 three-bedroom 

· A primary entrance on Woody Dr with secondary emergency access on service road adjacent to I-85 

· A left-turn lane on Woody Dr to enter the property 

· 320 parking spaces (minimum is 316 spaces) 

· Gates to restrict traffic entering the property but still accessible for fire and safety 

· Alternative compliance with building spacing requirements, as described in the site narrative 

· Realignment of the existing 18” public sewer line that crosses the property 

· Retaining walls where needed 

 

 

 



Staff Report, Watercourse Apartments (CR1403) Page 3 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

Technical Review Committee 
The TRC reviewed the preliminary site plan and met with the applicant on March 10, 2014. The applicant 
submitted a revised preliminary site plan on March 25, 2014. The following TRC comments were not 
addressed on the revised preliminary site plan: 

· Will need to provide a sidewalk along Woody Dr and from Woody Dr to the main building 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.1.1. Support efforts to protect sensitive natural resources 
including wetlands, waterways, slopes, floodplains, etc. Town 
Branch Creek crosses the property. The proposed 
development is set back from the creek and floodplain in 
accordance with the Development Ordinance. 

· 6.3.1. Encourage the conversion and development of higher 
density residential development around the downtown and 
other designated activity areas. This proposal is for a higher 
density residential development in a Regional Commercial 
Center. 

· 6.3.1. Prohibit residential development that is in close 
proximity to incompatible uses or provide proper buffering 
to protect existing uses and new development. The proposed 
apartments are adjacent to the interstate and undeveloped 
land and across the street and the creek from existing 
commercial uses. 

· 6.3.7. Promote a greenway system that links together the 
City’s recreational resources. The proposal includes a trail in 
the area between E Harden St and Town Branch Creek that 
could be part of a future greenway system along the creek. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

· 7.4.4.1.1. Ensure that development along Hwy 54 does not 
replicate the highway commercial/strip development 
characteristic of S Main St. This can be accomplished by promoting nodal development through a 
regional commercial center and village center with sufficient separation between centers. A regional 
commercial center could include a major anchor store(s) interspersed with smaller commercial 
activities, office and institutional uses, multifamily, and governmental facilities located within an 
integrated complex. The proposal is for multifamily located in a regional commercial center. 

· 7.4.4.1.5. Develop and promote a greenway system along rivers, creeks and tributaries to provide 
recreational opportunities for residents and protect environmentally sensitive areas. These corridors 
would also protect scenic areas for the community and provide a natural buffer for waterways. The 
proposal includes a trail in the area between E Harden St and Town Branch Creek that could be part 
of a future greenway system along the creek. 

Planning District 
Central 

Development Type 
Regional Commercial Center 

Located near a major 
thoroughfare with interstate 

access and large parcels 

For townhouses, apartments, 
commercial, office/institutional 

and mixed use 

Characteristics include  
automobile-oriented; design 

requirements; sidewalks; street 
trees; landscaping; 

buffering/screening; parking 
provided on-site; height of 

structures regulated; controlled 
access; building orientation 

Density of 5+ DU/acre 
>100,000sf retail 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 



Staff Report, Watercourse Apartments (CR1403) Page 4 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

· 7.4.4.1.7. Encourage residential development that conserves land along rivers, creeks and tributaries 
to protect environmentally sensitive areas, promote open space preservation and provide a natural 
buffer for waterways. The proposal includes a trail, park and open space in areas adjacent to Town 
Branch Creek and will comply with the City’s floodplain and riparian buffers. 

Graham Pedestrian Plan 

· Recommends a five-foot sidewalk on this section of Hwy 54/E Harden St as a high priority, near-term 
project and on this section of Woody Dr as a lower priority, long-term project. Also recommends 
greenways, though Town Branch Creek is not listed as a priority project. The proposal includes an 
8’ asphalt trail along E Harden St and Town Branch Creek that will serve as a pedestrian path along 
E Harden St and could also be part of a future greenway system along the creek. Being located in the 
Hwy 54 Overlay District, the development will be required to install a sidewalk along Woody Dr. 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends approval of the Conditional Rezoning. The following supports this recommendation: 

· The development furthers a number of goals of the Growth Management Plan and is consistent with 
the Development Toolkit Checklist for Regional Commercial Center. 

· The development complies, or will comply upon final site plan approval, with the standards of the 
Development Ordinance. 





Watercourse Apartments Site Narrative 
March 24, 2014 

 
The proposed project consists of (7) apartment buildings, (1) Maintenance Building, and 
Swimming Pool Complex. The project will have 3 and 4 story buildings. The 4 story 
buildings are located closer to I-85. In addition to a primary entrance off Woody Drive, a 
second emergency access will be provided at the service road adjoining I-85 (also known 
as Woody Drive). The property is presently zoned as B-2. We are seeking conditional 
zoning to R-MF.  
 
All of the proposed roadway improvements on-site will be private. A left turn lane will be 
installed on Woody Drive to minimize impact to existing traffic heading east. The 
Development Ordinance requires a minimum of 316 parking spaces and we are proposing 
320 spaces. Card or scan gates will be installed beyond the apartment management office 
restricting traffic entering the project. We will work with local Fire and Safety 
departments to provide gate accessibility to suit their needs.  
 
The buildings will have significant architectural fenestration as evidenced in the 
elevations provided. We are seeking alternative compliance to the strict interpretation of 
building spacing outlined in Section 10.247 of the Development Ordinance. Buildings 4 
and 5 are sitting lower in elevation to the surrounding parcels with the use of a retaining 
wall. These (3) story buildings will effectively act as two story buildings with the use of 
the retaining wall. Buildings 6 and 7 are not located adjacent to other properties and are 
proposed as (4) story units. In each of these cases ample separation has been provided to 
promote air and light movement. The symmetry of the buildings with associated 
sidewalks and roads is designed to provide adequate looping of vehicular and pedestrian 
traffic through the property. 
 
An existing 18” public sewer outfall crosses the site. A portion of this outfall will be 
realigned to allow proposed development. An existing public sewer easement is also 
stubbed to the Shoffner  tract to the northeast. A proposed public sewer outfall will be 
installed to the property line (Parcel 8884729623). The proposed on-site water 
improvements will be private and a meter and rpz will be installed near the project 
entrance. 
 
The project will have +/- 30% open space. The impervious coverage will be less than 
40%. Wet ponds are proposed to accommodate 90% TSS removal associated with 1” 
runoff from impervious areas. The future WQ ponds will initially act as skimmer basins 
during construction. All proposed improvements within the 100 year floodplain will be 
permitted by the City in compliance with the City’s Floodplain Development and 
Riparian Buffer Protection Ordinances. 
 
 







Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 1



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 2



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 3



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 4



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 5



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 6



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 7



Watercourse Apartments
Graham, NC  March 17, 2014 Conceptual Perspective View 8


	Agenda
	1. Minutes from 3/18/2014
	2. Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401)
	3. Watercourse Apartments (CR1403)

